Dr. James D. Heard died at his home on Aylesboro Avenue in Pittsburgh on December 29, 1967. Had he lived eleven days more he would have been ninety-eight years old for he was born January 9, 1870. In his death this Society lost a good friend and a long-time member but benefitted by his generous bequest of $113,000 which has been added to our endowment.

Dr. Heard’s father was James Board Heard, a native of New York State and a merchant of Pittsburgh; while his mother was Emilie L. Delavan, a native of Connecticut, daughter of a Presbyterian minister who in turn was a member of a famous family which had contributed ten soldiers to the Revolutionary Army. The Heards had been married in the chapel of the Third Presbyterian Church, Pittsburgh, in 1869.

The Heards rented a house on Stockton Street, Allegheny, and there Jamie D. Heard was born. They then moved to a small house on Ulysses Street in what is now known as Mt. Washington. There a sister, Gertrude Booth, and a brother, John J., were born. This move was made because Mrs. Heard wished to be near a cousin, Curtis Benjamin Minor Smith, a lawyer with whose family she had lived when first coming to Pittsburgh unheralded and a total stranger. Mr. Smith, like Judge Thomas Mellon, was a part-time teacher and his friend. There she grew up like a sister to another famous lawyer, Edwin Whittier Smith, better known later as the Smith of Reed, Smith, Shaw and McClay or Beal.

Jamie Heard’s early schooling was at an institution in Old Allegheny on North Avenue known as Park Institute. Later it became the school of his brother and was the ground on which the Heard and Christie families met. He attended what was known as Western University of Pennsylvania, now University of Pittsburgh, where he was an indifferent student, probably due to poor eyesight for which he wore thick lenses all his life.

On graduation he entered the Medical School of the University of Pennsylvania where in a class of three hundred he graduated at the head of his class. Most of his junior year he was employed as an intern by the Philadelphia German Hospital, riding at night in an ambulance drawn at a gallop by three mules.

After taking the usual examinations he was admitted to the practice of medicine in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. He then
went abroad and spent the next two years studying, attending lectures and doing laboratory work in various medical schools and hospitals in London, Berlin, Paris and Vienna, during which he learned to speak and read French and German extremely well. His father had mortgaged their Mt. Washington home to make this possible.

In 1893 he returned to Pittsburgh and began the practice of medicine which continued for more than sixty years except for two years when he was in France during the First World War. After a number of years in general practice he began specializing in "internal medicine" with attention to the treatment of patients with abnormal conditions of the heart and circulatory system. During much of this time he was teaching at the University of Pittsburgh Medical School.

During his years of practice he became Chief Medical Director of the Elizabeth Steel Magee Hospital, a member of the staff of St. Francis, the Children's and the Pittsburgh Hospitals, and Director of Medical Service at The Falk Clinic. For a considerable time he was Chief of Staff of St. Francis Hospital.

When it became obvious that this country was likely to become involved in the First World War and Woodrow Wilson was reluctant to suggest any violation of neutrality by preparing the military, the Plattsburg Camps developed to train citizens for the army at their own expense and on their own time.

Two far-sighted and patriotic medical men in Pittsburgh undertook to develop the medical requirements for war along the Plattsburg line. They were Dr. Thomas S. Arbuthnot and Dr. James D. Heard. In time they erected buildings, enlisted and trained personnel from surgeons and nurses to orderlies, and equipped a hospital known as Base Hospital 27; and when the first American casualties began coming in, it was ready at Angiers, France, to receive them. (Our late Secretary, C. W. W. Elkin, M.D., was a member of its staff.)

After the Base Hospital had been in successful operation for some time, Dr. Heard was sent by General Ireland, acting head of the United States military forces in France, to consult and cooperate with Dr. William Osler in studying and perhaps finding a cure for a disease known as "soldier's heart" which was widespread among men who had been under fire for long periods. (Dr. Osler of London is looked upon as the greatest physician of his time, if not of all time.) Dr. Heard was instrumental in recommending a treatment of this unknown disease which was adopted by many allied hospitals, with the result that many lives were probably saved and some men were returned to the front.

Dr. James Heard was first a major, then a lieutenant colonel and
finally a colonel, as was Dr. Arbuthnot. They were called to Paris
where they received a decoration and the thanks of France. These two
men, Dr. Arbuthnot and Dr. Heard, were the closest of friends as long
as they lived and, on the death of the former, Dr. Heard succeeded him
as Dean of the University of Pittsburgh Medical School.

Much had been written about a new instrument which had been
developed to study the hearts of living persons, called a cardiograph,
several of which were operating in London hospitals. Dr. Heard in-
vestigated and found they cost several thousand dollars, but decided
Pittsburgh needed one. He raised the money and when he returned to
this country he brought one and installed it at a Pittsburgh hospital.
It was probably the first to come into this country and is today stand-
ard equipment in heart analysis. It is probably because of this Dr.
Heard was widely regarded as a "heart specialist." This he protested,
claiming he was just "a family physician."

When the Physicians Building on University Place was first
erected, Dr. Heard took an office there which he retained until his
death. Professionally, Dr. Heard was a member of many medical asso-
ciations both in this and in other countries, among them the Association
of American Physicians. He was a member and several times president
of the Biological Society of the University of Pittsburgh, and others.

James Delavan Heard married Edith V. R. McIlvaine on Decem-
ber 27, 1910. She was the daughter of the Reverend James H. Mc-
Ilvaine, for many years pastor of the Calvary Episcopal Church on
Shady Avenue, Pittsburgh. They had no children. They acquired
homes on Aylesboro Avenue, Pittsburgh, in Fox Chapel, Pittsburgh,
as well as a summer home in Bar Harbor, Maine.

Under the will of Dr. Heard a portion of the residuary estate was
divided so that Calvary Church, the Third Presbyterian Church, the
St. Barnabas Free Home, the Pittsburgh Symphony Society, and the
Historical Society all received equal amounts.

Robert D. Christie
THE MANUSCRIPT AND MISCELLANEOUS COLLECTIONS OF THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA

A PRELIMINARY GUIDE

PART FOURTEEN

GC PRINTED MATERIAL. CATALOGS, PROGRAMS, TICKETS, ETC.

[AERONAUTICS. BETTIS FIELD, ALLEGHENY COUNTY.]

"Pittsburgh's Newest Air Port."


[AERONAUTICS. COMMERCIAL AIRLINES.]

Flight schedules. 2 items.
1932 Pennsylvania Airlines, Inc.
1932 Transcontinental & Western Air, Inc.

[AERONAUTICS.]


Paper covers, 9 x 6 in., 8 pp. Published by TWA, Inc., v. 1, no. 2.

[ALLEGHENY ARSENAL EXPLOSION, 1862.]

Dedication of New Monument . . . 1928.

Paper covers, 9 x 6 in., 15 pp., containing reprint:


Program of Ceremonies Attending the Unveiling of a Drinking Fountain . . . Presented to the City of Pittsburgh by the Dolly Madison Chapter, U.S.D. of 1812 . . . 1909.

Single-fold program, 9 x 5.5 in.; the principal speaker was President William Howard Taft.
Allegheny Bridge Co., Sixth Street (Pittsburgh).

Passenger ticket, ca. 1870[?].
Cardboard ticket, 1 x 2 in., with cut of double-span suspension bridge. Printed on reverse: Good for one Foot Passage to or from Pittsburgh and Allegheny, on 6th, 7th and 9th Street Bridges. Issued by the 6th St. Bridge Co.

Allegheny Cemetery, Pittsburgh, Pa.

Proprietor's ticket, 1872.
Cardboard ticket of admission, 2 x 3 in., with date stamped on reverse; issued to Wm. S. Davison.
From Davison Paper.

Allegheny County Centennial, 1888.

Official Program of School Children's Jubilee at the County Centennial. Also, Program of Song at the Presentation of Flags to the Public Schools by the Sr. and Jr. O.U.A.M.

Paper covers, 9 x 5.5 in., 16 pp.; inscribed: Used by Florence E. Howe in School Childrens Chorus — Court House Steps Sept. 24, 1888. Chorus was led by Prof. Robt. Martin . . .

Allegheny County Centennial, 1888.

Souvenir Programme . . . September 24th, 25th and 26th.
Single-fold program, 7.5 x 5 in.

Allegheny Theological Seminary.

Single-fold program, 9 x 6 in. 2 copies.

[Americanization.]

Celebration and meeting programs. 2 items.
1915 July 4 Flagstaff Hill, Schenley Park
1919 Feb. 22 Soldiers & Sailors Memorial

Americus Republican Club of Pittsburgh, Pa.

Collection of elaborate and decorative programs, lacking those for 1896-1899 and 1901-1904.
Anne Ashley Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church.
Munhall, Pa.

*Bulletin, 104th Anniversary, 1934.*
Single-fold mimeographed sheet, 8 x 4.5 in. Dr. Russell J. Ferguson spoke on “The Church in Western Pennsylvania” at Home-Coming Service, May 27. 2 copies.

Arlington National Cemetery.

*Program of the ceremonies attending the burial of an Unknown and Unidentified American Soldier who lost his life during the World War. Ceremonies at Memorial Amphitheater November 11, 1921.*

Paper covers, 8 x 5.5 in., 12 pp.
Gift of Grace N. Leacock.

[Assemblies.] Pittsburgh, Pa.

Invitation to two Assemblies, 1888.
3 cards, 5 x 8 in., with separate list of patronesses. Held at the Masonic Building, Washington St., Allegheny, 1888, Feb. 10.
In original envelope.
Gift of Miss Edith Cole.

Beaver Academy.

*Exhibition, September 27, 1844, [and] Exhibition of the Franklin Literary Society, ... September 25th, 1846.*
Single-sheet programs, 11 x 8 and 13.5 x 7.5 in.; both soiled.

Beckert, Wm. C. [Seedsman], Allegheny, Pa.

*Beckert’s Garden, Flower & Lawn Seeds [1905].*
Illustrated, priced catalog, with decorative paper covers, 10 x 8 in., 48 pp. Includes index and list of “Useful Books.”
Gift of Richard Linder.

Beulah Presbyterian Church.

*One Hundred and Fiftieth Anniversary of the Organization of Beulah Presbyterian Church, 1934.*
Pamphlet, 9 x 6 in., 8 pp.; with view of the church. Includes program of historical pageant. 2 copies.
Gift of Emma Dare Poole.
[Bicycle license, 1897].
Pittsburgh. City Treasurer's Office.
License issued to Miss R. M. Johns for one bicycle for one
year, 50 cents.
Gift of Lily Lee Nixon.

[Dedication of D.A.R. tablet, 1908.]
Card, 5.5 x 7 in., admitting bearer to ceremonies; contains a
reproduction of tablet.

Bonus Expeditionary Forces, Pittsburgh-Allegheny County.
Benefit Show, Moose Temple, Pittsburgh, Pa., Sunday, No-
vember 6, 1932.
Single-fold program, 9 x 12 in., folds crudely repaired.
Gift of W. A. Mack, Bayville, N. J.

Braddock, Gen. Edward. Memorials, etc.
[Invitations to ceremonials by:]
The Braddock Memorial Park Association dedication of
monument, 1913 Oct. 15.
The United States Commission and the Local Community
175th Anniversary Celebration of “The Battle of Braddock,”
1930 July 8-9.

Braddock’s Expedition. Memorials.
Queen Alliquippa Chapter, D.A.R., invitation to “the unveil-
ing of the Tablet in marking the last camp of Major General
Edward Braddock on his military expedition to Fort Duquesne
... McKeesport, Pa.,” 1914 Sept. 19.
Card, 3.5 x 4.5 in.

Brownsville, Pa.
Official Souvenir Program Victory Week Celebration Oc-
tober 8th to 15th 1938.
Paper covers, 20 pp., 7 x 4.5 in. Refers to the Board of
Trade's “Brownsville Plan to Mobilize the Nation for Recovery.”

Burns, Robert. Anniversary celebrations.
138th Anniversary of the Birthday of Scotland’s Favorite
Bard ... Monongahela House 1897 Jan. 25. Menu.
150th Anniversary of the Birth of Robert Burns ... Carnegie
Hall, Braddock, Pa. ... 1909 Jan. 25. Program.

*Ceremony of the Burns Monument . . . Schenley Park* . . . [1914].

10 p. pamphlet, 9 x 6 in., with engraved cover and illustration of the statue.

Chamber of Commerce. Pittsburgh, Pa.

[Collection of souvenir programs.] 10 items.

1898 Annual banquet, Andrew Carnegie
1905 Banquet, Sir Chentung Liang-Cheng
1907 Annual banquet, J. Dalzell, J. Brashear
1911 Annual banquet, William H. Taft
1912 Banquet, Pittsburgh Flood Commission
1914 Annual banquet, Earl of Kintore
1918 Luncheon, Blue Devils — Heroes of France
1919 Luncheon, Gen. Leonard Wood
1923 Annual banquet, Nicholas Longworth
1924 Reception, Club’s 50th anniversary

Church of the United Brethren in Christ. Laughlintown, Pa.

*The Re-opening and Corner-stone Laying . . . 1929.*

5.5 x 4.5 in. single-fold program containing a brief historical statement from its organization in 1895.

Cleveland & Pittsburgh Rail Road Company.

Receipts, 1860. 2 items.

To J. R. Brown, for transportation of reapers, mowers, and fixtures, from Cleveland; S. by Downington for Agent.

[CoLE, C. L., *U.S. Consul General to Dresden.*]

Testimonial dinner, Duquesne Club, 1897.

8 x 6 in. souvenir menu with small vignette portrait.

Gift of Edith Cole.

Concerts. Pittsburgh.

Miscellaneous programs, 1885-1902. 7 items.

1885 May Musical Festival: Frau Frederick Materna.
1901 Exposition Society, Sousa and Band; and Walter Damrosch and N. Y. Symphony Orchestra.
1902 Carnegie Music Hall, Art Society; and Eduard Strauss with Vienna Orchestra.
1902 Duquesne Garden, Grand Opera; and Victor Herbert with Pittsburgh Orchestra.
Concerts. Pittsburgh, 1895.


Decorative paper covers detached, 12 x 9 in., 8 pp. For the benefit of McPherson Post, No. 117, G.A.R.
Gift of Genevieve Blatt, Harrisburg, with T.L.S.

[CROGHAN, GEORGE].

D.S. James Hamilton and John Lukens to Thomas Croyle, 1762.

Photocopy of listing of 1773 copy of land warrant for 100 acres adjoining Croghan’s at the mouth of Snake Spring, Cumberland County, Pa.
Offered as part of item 120 for $50 in Ken Hottle catalog 17, Sept. 1970. See also John Fraser 1766.

DELONG ACADEMY. Pittsburgh.

_Prof. DeLong's Grand Juvenile Fancy Dress Exhibition at Lafayette Hall . . . 1872._

Single-sheet program, 8 x 4.5 in.

DUQUESNE COLLEGE. Pittsburgh, Pa.

[Fifth Commencement, 1848.]

Single-sheet invitation and order of exercises, 8 x 5 in. Commencement was held at the First Presbyterian Church for the 6 graduates.
Gift of Galen C. Hartman.

DUQUESNE GREYS. CAMP SCOTT.

Invitation to Farewell Dinner, 1875 July 25.
On embossed sheet, 5 x 6 in.; issued to Simon Johnston.

EAST LIBERTY. Pittsburgh, Pa.


Illustrated program, 12 x 9 in., 32 pp. Many of the numerous advertisements are in Italian.

ECONOMY, PA.

_Souvenir of the Economy (Ambridge) Centennial June 6, 7 & 8, 1924._

8.5 x 6 in. single-fold program. “Printed enroute the parade
of the Historic Pageant, . . . on the Harmony Society's Press and Type of 100 years ago."

EGGERS, EDWARD E. (1867-1926).

In Memoriam.


EMORY METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH. East End, Pittsburgh, Pa.

Fortieth Annual Session, General Executive Committee, Woman's Foreign Missionary Society of the Methodist Episcopal Church, 1909.

Program, 7 x 5 in., 16 pp.; exterior view of the church on the cover.

From Struble scrapbook.

EVANS, RAWDON.

Testimonial Dinner given by Personal Friends . . . on the occasion of his retirement as Purchasing Agent of the Pittsburgh & Lake Erie Railroad Co. Duquesne Club . . . [1908].

Souvenir program, 9 x 7 in., with small oval photoprint of Evans.

From O. S. Decker Collection.

EXCHANGE HOTEL, Pittsburgh, Pa. 1843.

Bill of Fare, Irwin Dinner, on Thursday, March 30th, 1843. Mounted on cardboard, 15 x 5 in. Includes view of the hotel (adjacent to Stage & Canal Boat Offices), passenger vehicles, etc.

Removed from glazed frame, 1965.

FILIPINO COMMISSIONERS, HONORARY BOARD OF.

Banquet tendered to the members . . . by the City of Pitts-
burgh . . . [1904].

Souvenir program, 8 x 5.5 in., 12 pp.

Gift of Mrs. W. H. Stevenson.

[FIRST] PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, Pittsburgh.

Lottery ticket, 1807.
S. Jno. Wilkins, President of the Board of Managers.

Same, newspaper facsimile.

Gift of Henry K. Siebeneck.
First Presbyterian Church. Pittsburgh.
*Order of Service in connection with the Laying of the Corner Stone . . . 1903.*
Single-fold program, 8 x 6 in.

First Presbyterian Church. Pittsburgh.
*Patriotic Sunday, July 1, 1917.*
Single-fold program in color, 6 x 3.5 in., including brief historical account and containing vignette view on cover.

First Presbyterian Church. Tarentum, Pa.
*Celebration of the One Hundredth Anniversary . . . [1932].*
Single-fold program, 8 x 5.5 in.

Fisk, James, Jr. (1834-1872).
S. invitation, 1871 Aug. 7, to Hon. J. Rees, to attend a ball given to W. B. Borrows at which will appear the Ninth Regiment Band; on initialed letterhead. Also invitation to Grand Civic and Military Installation Ball, Continental Hotel, 1871 Aug. 10.

Fort Fayette. Memorial.
Women's Historical Society of Pennsylvania invitation “at the Unveiling of the Tablet, on the site of Fort Fayette, Penn Avenue and Ninth Street,” Pittsburgh, Pa., 1914 May 12.
Card, 3.5 x 4.5 in.

Fort Hand. Memorial.
*Dedication exercises . . . by Fort Hand Chapter Daughters of the American Revolution Saturday, October 6, 1934.*
Single-sheet program, 8 x 6 in. The fort was near Vandergrift, Pa.

Fourth Pennsylvania Veteran Cavalry.
*Fifth Reunion and Banquet . . . At Butler, Penn'a. on August Twenty-Sixth, 1891.*
Program as General Order No. 5; includes lists of battles and casualty statistics.
Gift of Mabel Hacknew, Los Angeles, Calif.

[Fraser, John.]
D.S. John Penn and John Lukes Frazer, 1766.
Photocopy of listing of warrant for 100 acres of land in Cove Creek, Cumberland County, Pa.
Offered as part of item 120 for $50 in Ken Hottle catalog 17, Sept. 1970.
FUNERALS.

[Invitation cards, 1820, 1821.] 2 items. Small printed forms, for funeral of Mrs. L. Ziegler, 1820 Nov. 19, and of Joseph Pierce, Dayton, 1821 Sept. 27. Gift of Mrs. Frank Morehead Stephenson.

G.A.R. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL.

Testimonial Dinner . . . To Daniel C. Ripley, Chairman, and Albert J. Logan, Executive Director. Hotel Duquesne . . . 1895. Cards, 7 x 5 in., with hand-painted cover.

G.A.R. VETERANS, 1892.

Banquet Tendered by the Citizens of Pittsburgh and Allegheny . . . Old City Hall, . . . February 25th, 1892. Menu and program toasts; includes statistics regarding Pittsburgh Subsistence Committee, 1861-1866.


Programme.

6 pp., colored borders, with paper covers, in colors. Music was provided by the U.S. Marine Band, conducted by John Philip Sousa, and the Germania Orchestra of Philadelphia, conducted by William Stoll, Jr.

Gift of C. S. Wardley.

GARFIELD MONUMENT FUND.

Membership certificate and relics, 1882.

To 8.5 x 4.5 in.; includes envelope from Relic Bureau, Garfield Obsequies, addressed to Lawrence W. Frank, Pittsburg.

HAYDN CHORAL ASSOCIATION OF BEAVER VALLEY.

Program for The Messiah, at Beaver College Musical Hall, 1902 Feb. 21.

Single-fold sheet, 5 x 5.5 in. 2 copies.

HIGHLAND PARK BRIDGE CO. Pittsburgh, Pa.

Ticket for passage of two-horse vehicle and driver, n.d.

Gift of Mrs. David Carlin through Dr. Belfour.

INDEPENDENCE DAY.


Single-fold program, 9 x 6 in., in red and blue; auspices of The Greater Pittsburgh All Nations Festival Committee.
IRVING LITERARY SOCIETY [Allegheny, Pa.].  

Second Anniversary Entertainment, Masonic Hall, April 26th, 1883.

Program, 4 pp., including advertisements of many Allegheny merchants. The Society was organized in 1881.
Folds have been repaired with scotch tape.
Gift of Miss Phyllis Jayme, Evanston, Ill.

JACOBS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH. German Township, Fayette County.  

100th Anniversary . . . And the Dedication of The Memorial Log Church 1773 . . . 1933.
Pamphlet, 9 x 6 in., 8 pp., containing historical sketch, with bibliography.

JEFFERSON COLLEGE. Canonsburg, Pa.  

[Invitations to exercises, 1860.] 2 items.
Single sheet, 6.5 x 4 in., to contest between the Philo and Franklin Literary Societies; inscribed: Compliments of W. G. Hawkins. Also 8 x 5 in. program of Commencement week exercises, inscribed: Compliments of J. T. Chalfant to Miss Beeler.

JOHNSON, ANDREW. IMPEACHMENT.
Admission card to Senate gallery, 1868 Apr. 10.
Gift of Frances W. Lauer.

KITTANNING, PA. ARMSTRONG EXPEDITION, 1756.  

[Invitation to unveiling of Indian Monument, 1926 Sept. 8.] Card, 4 x 5 in.; auspices of State Historical Commission and Armstrong County Historical Society; address by John S. Fisher.

LAFAYETTE, MARQUIS GILBERT DE (1757-1834).  

Welcome La Fayette! In honor of Gen. La Fayette, You are respectfully invited to attend a Ball in Nashville . . . April 7, 1825. Engraved invitation, 10 x 8 in., by C. C. Torrey and R. E. W. Earl; small portrait busts of Jackson, Washington, Lafayette, etc.

LAMB, FRANK C. Birmingham, Mich.  

Collection of express and railroad bills of lading, etc., 1860. 5 items.

Bills of lading, etc., from the Adams Express Company, Grant St. Office, Pittsburgh (with cut of railroad train); Penn'a. Rail Road Company, Pittsburgh; and Eagle Hotel, Pittsburgh. Gift of Mr. Lamb, with A.L.S.
Laughlinstown, Pa. Centennial, 1897.

Invitation and program. 2 items.
Single sheets, 10 x 6 and 11 x 7.5 in.; the town was originally named East Liberty, Westmoreland County.

"Logan Armory." Pittsburgh, Pa.

Appeal for funds, 1910.

Manufacturers Association of Pittsburgh.

Ninth Annual Banquet, February 15th, 1912, Union Club.
Souvenir menu and program, 7 x 5 in., with accompanying song sheet.

Mercantile Library Course [Pittsburgh, 1875].

An Evening of Dramatic Readings & Recitations by the Talented and Accomplished Artiste, Miss Augusta L. Dargon at Library Hall, Friday Evening, December 10, '75.
Single-sheet program, 9.5 x 6 in.
Gift of Ida M. Allerton.


Celebration of 141st Anniversary . . . [1934].
Single-fold program, 9 x 6 in.; includes list of supplies and former pastors, 1794-1934.

The Needlework Guild of America. Allegheny Branch, ca. 1913.
Description sheet, single-fold, 7 x 8.5 in., including rules, duties, and list of presidents of 23 local sections.


Dinner List and Program. 2 items.
Together 24 pp., 10 x 7 in., with paper cover. The dinner was sponsored by the City of Pittsburgh, The Chamber of Commerce of Pittsburgh, and the Pittsburgh Coal Exchange, to mark the opening of the 9-foot stage from Pittsburgh to Cairo. Principal speakers were Secretary of the Treasury Mellon, Secretary of War Good, and Pennsylvania Governor Fisher.

Oliver, David Brown.

[Testimonial dinner] Duquesne Club, 1921.
Invitation and souvenir program, 9 x 6 in., with numerous
illustrations, including portrait on cover.

**Penn Grant, 1787.**

*Unveiling of the Tablet marking the Penn Grant of 1787 by the Pittsburgh Chapter Daughters of the American Revolution. First Presbyterian and Trinity Churchyards . . . 1915.*

Single-fold sheet, 7.5 x 5 in.; lists names of 49 military officers associated with early Pittsburgh, of whom most were buried in the churchyards.

**Pennsylvania Volunteer Infantry. 10th Regiment.**

*Programme of the Exercises . . . [&] Reception, Schenley Park, Pittsburgh . . . 1899.*

Single-fold sheet, 9 x 5.5 in., with cover photoprint of the late Col. Alexander Leroy Hawkins. The principal speaker was President Wm. McKinley.

**Phipps, Henry (1839-1930).**

*Testimonial dinner, Duquesne Club, 1909.*

Souvenir program, 8 x 6 in., with hand-painted cover, seating arrangement, and song list, in envelope addressed Benjamin Thaw.

"*Pic Nics.*"

Invitations and tickets to picnics. 2 items.
1853  Grand Select Pic Nic, Swissvale
1874  Select Basket Picnic, Baum's Grove, Roup's Station.
      Gift of Mrs. Robt. C. McCague.

**Pittsburgh and Allegheny Baseball Club.**

Tickets of admission, 1909-1912. 4 items.
Rain checks, 1909 World Series, with Season Pass and Complimentary ticket, 1912.
      Gift of H. T. Hardie, Pa.

**Pittsburgh Centennial Tea Party, 1875.**

Tickets of admission to Library Hall, 1875 Apr. 7-9.
      Assistant's ticket and Supplementary Assistant's ticket.

**Pittsburgh Cincinnati & St. Louis Railway.**

Pass, 1883.
      Issued to W. J. Smith and five men between "Pittsburgh and Nimick a/c Survey."
Pittsburgh Exposition, 1883.
Ticket of admission.
Fragment only.
Gift of W. J. McClurg, 1934.

Pittsburgh Exposition, 1886.

Pittsburgh Female College.
Ticket to reading contest, 1872.
For the Mrs. Margaret Davidson prize.
Gift of Sister Elizabeth McCormick, Chatham College.

Pittsburgh. Ferries, 1816.
Agreement to pay $1 for yearly passage to Joseph McCluskey, lower ferry, S. James Cunningham, 1816 Apr. 1.
Completed form, 2 x 6 in., glazed in frame 5 x 8 in.
Gift of Mary Agnes Cunningham Stenger through Mrs. James J. Rees, Bridgeport, Pa.

Pittsburgh Industrial Exposition. 2d, 1876.
Horticultural Department [regulations and program].
Single-fold sheet, 8 x 5 in.; cover has engraved view of building by Delius, Pittsburgh.
From Newmeyer Collection.

Pittsburgh Library Association, 1878.
Bazaar of Nations. At Library Hall, . . . Feb. 27th to March 3d, 1878; [and] Supplement. 2 items.
Program, 8 pp., 12 x 9.5 in., with supplement, 4 pp.

Pittsburgh Library Loan Exhibition. At Library Hall, Commencing . . . February 3d, 1879.
Descriptive and advertising program, 12 pp., 13 x 9.5 in.
Contains a view of Library Hall.

Pittsburgh Musical Club.
Membership certificate, 1882.
Card, 3 x 5.5 in.
Pittsburgh Philharmonic Society.

Grand Concert . . . at Dr. Swift's Church, on . . . February 13, 1855 . . . by request of the Ladies' Relief Association for the Benefit of the Poor of Allegheny City . . .

Single-fold program, 8 x 5 in.


Miscellaneous schedules. 6 items.

McKeesport and Belle Vernon Railroad, 1889; Pennsylvania Railroad, 1873, 1876, 1878; Pittsburgh, Virginia & Charleston Railway, 1877; Vandalia Line, 1877.

Gift, in part, of R. T. Wiley.

Pittsburgh Sanitary Fair, 1863.

[Stationery.]

Single sheet, 11 x 8.5 in., with elaborate head and tail pieces and list of honorary members and of the executive committee.

Pittsburgh. Sesquicentennial, 1908.

Invitation, program, etc., to celebration, Nov. 27-Oct. 3.

Engraved cards, 7 x 9 in., with embossed colored coat of arms.

Pittsburgh. Sesqui-Centennial, 1908.

The "Vision" of our Forefathers. Souvenir Compliments of The Pittsburgh Chronicle Telegraph.

View of the Point in 1758, 3 x 5 in., printed in red and blue; when viewed through accompanying red filter modern bridges, boats, and buildings appear.

Gift of John F. Collins.

Pittsburgh. Street railways, 1891.


Pamphlet, 5 x 4 in., 32 pp. Routes of 13 traction, railway, and incline companies operating cable and electric roads and horse and steam cars. Illustrations include views of "League Ball Park," an incline, etc.

Gift of A. H. LePlant.

Pittsburgh. Subsistence & Sanitary Committees [1863?].

Programme of Tableaux Vivants, for the benefit of the Subsistence & Sanitary Committees, Pittsburgh, Penn'a.

Single-fold sheet, 8 x 5 in., with some performers identified.
From Harper family papers.

**Pittsburg Subway Company.**
Advertisement, 1906.

**Pittsburgh. Transportation.**

**Pittsburgh. Volunteer Fire and Hose Companies.**
[Invitations to Soirees and Balls, 1848-1851.] 7 items. Decorative invitations printed in gold by Neptune, Niagara, Vigilant, and William Penn Fire companies, to be held at the La Fayette Assembly Rooms. Many other companies are represented on the list of managers. Gift of Frank A. and R. Garey Dickson.

**Pleasant Grove Shrine of American Revolution.**
Near Ligonier, Pa.
Single-fold sheet, 7 x 5 in.

**Pontiac, Ottawa Chief (1720-1769).**
Paper covers, 29 pp., mimeographed, with floor plan of the exhibit.

**Portage Railroad.**
*Program of . . . Unveiling of a Monument Commemorating the One Hundredth Anniversary of the . . . Old Portage Railroad . . . [1929].*
Single-fold sheet, 8 x 6 in. The ceremony was held at the William Penn Highway between Hollidaysburg and Cresson with the assistance of the Blair County Historical Society.
Roosevelt, Theodore (1858-1919).

[Souvenir programs of visit to Pittsburgh, 1902.] 3 items.
Luncheon by Henry Clay Frick at Claymore; Greater Pittsburgh's Annual Fourth of July Celebration at Schenley Park; Dinner by Philander Chase Knox at the Hotel Schenley.


Order of vesper services; description, 1932[?]. 2 items.
Single-fold sheets, 9 x 6 in. Descriptive folder, issued by The Church of the Atonement, Carnegie, Pa., contains photoprint of church exterior and map of improved roads to the church. "The Oldest Episcopal Church west of the Allegheny Mountains."

Shady Avenue Presbyterian Church. Pittsburgh.

Order of Services, 1919.
Single-fold sheet, 9 x 6 in.

Sharpsburgh and Lawrenceville Bridge Company.

Foot-passenger strip tickets. 4 items.
Strips of 3 and 6, also single Allegheny Bridge Co. ticket; in small leather case (pat. 1910) stamped in gold: Compliments of Joseph Greenberg, Etna.
Gift of Richard C. Linder.

Society of the Army of the Cumberland.

Banquet, Thursday Evening, Sept. 18, 1873, Pittsburgh.
Souvenir menu and program, paper cover, 7.5 x 5.5 in.; attached inside front cover is a feather from the eagle mascot "Old Abe." Among those responding to toasts were Gen. W. T. Sherman and Chaplain R. C. Christy.

Society of the Army of the Cumberland.

Invitation [and] Programme of Exercises, Seventh Annual Re-Union, Pittsburgh, September 17th & 18th, 1873. 2 items.
Single-fold sheets, 10 x 8 and 8.5 x 3.5 in. Lt. Gen. P. H. Sheridan was President of the Society and Maj. Gen. Jas. S. Negley was Chairman of the Executive Committee. Meetings were held at The Monongahela House and Library Hall.

Soldiers and Sailors Memorial Hall of Allegheny County.

Program of Dedicatory Exercises, Oct. 9-10 and 11, 1910.
Decorative paper covers, 10 x 7 in., 8 pp.
Hays Coll Adds.
SOLOMON, W. A.

Collection of theater programs, 1870's. 100± items.

Playbills and programs for various opera and variety houses in Pittsburgh. Many are part of two serial publications, *The Evening Programme and Hotel Register*, and *The Daily Good Fight*. This collection is separately boxed.

SPORTS — FOOTBALL.


Card, 5.5 x 8 in., with schedule; list of players on reverse.

Gift of Wm. P. Story.

STANDARD MFG. CO. PITTSBURGH.

Trade Catalog, ca. 1892.

36 pp., with numerous illustrations and description of manufacturing bathtubs and other plumbing supplies.

Gift of Torrance Baker.

TETEDOUX, CLEMENT.

*Concert, to be given by Mr. Clement Tetedoux' Pupils, at Masonic Hall . . . 1865.*

Single-fold program, 6.5 x 4 in.

THEATERS. PITTSBURGH.

Collection of playbills, programs, etc., 1831-1927. 20± items.

From Library Hall, Academy of Music, Grand Opera House, The Alvin, The Nixon, Carnegie Drama School, etc. Featured performers include Charlotte Cushman, Anna Held, H. B. Irving, Mrs. Fiske, and others. A few programs are souvenirs printed on silk.

Gift, in part, of Miss Edith Cole.

THEATERS. PITTSBURGH.

See also: W. A. Solomon, Collection of theater programs, 1870's.

THOMAS, ISAAC.

Certificates of membership, Philadelphia Medical Society, 1819, 1820. 2 items.

Engrossed vellum, 11.5 x 15.5 in., with paper seals.

TRANSPORTATION — RAILROAD, 1860.

See: Lamb, Frank C. Collection, 1860.
U.S. Christian Commission.

Order of Exercises, Second Presbyterian Church, Pittsburgh, Pa., March 23d, 1863.

Single sheet, 8.5 x 5.5 in.

United States Military Telegraph Corps.

[Invitation] . . . to attend the Unveiling of a Bronze Tablet at the Soldiers' and Sailors' Memorial Hall Pittsburgh, Pa. . . . . . . 1911.

Double-fold sheet, 9 x 6 in., with photoprint of tablet by Charles Keck, a pupil of St. Gaudens, "In memory of 41 volunteers from Allegheny County, Penna., who served . . . during the Civil War 1861-1865."


Decorative paper cover, 8 pp., 12 x 9 in., with double-page illustration of exterior view.

University of Pittsburgh.

Miscellaneous invitations and programs. 4 items.

Centennial Celebration of the Granting of the Second Charter, 1919; First Annual History Conference, 1930; Cap and Gown Club 26th production, All to the Point, 1933; and YMCA Annual Report, 1934.

The Veteran Guard of Allegheny County.

"At Home" invitation, Memorial Hall, 1911.

Single-fold sheet, 5 x 4 in., issued to S. B. McCormick.

Washington Crossing Memorial Bridge, Pittsburgh.


Decorative paper covers, 8 pp., 9 x 6 in.


[Invitation to] War-Time Patriotic Meeting . . . dedication of Memorial Tablet marking site of Gen. ("Mad Anthony") Wayne's Army Cantonment at Logstown (Legionville) Beaver County . . . 1918.

Card, 4.5 x 6.5 in.

West Alexander Academy.

Literary Exhibition, . . . March 26th, 1856.

Card, 5 x 3.5 in.
Gift of Wm. H. Vodrey.

Western University of Pennsylvania.
Collection of invitations and programs. 19 items
1859 Preparatory Department Exhibition
1866 Irving Literary Association Meeting
1869 Alumni Association Semi-Annual Meeting Catalogue
Commencement
Junior Exhibition
Preparatory Department Exhibition
1870 Alumni Association Dinner, Semi-Centennial
Alumni Association Anniversary Exercises
Commencement, Semi-Centennial
1871 Preparatory Department Exhibition
1872 Alumni Association Dinner
Commencement
Preparatory Department Exhibition
1873 Irving and Philomathean Literary Societies, 8th Annual Contest
1874 Same, 9th Annual Contest
1876 Preparatory Department Exhibition
1877 Same
1897 110th — Anniversary — 75th

Whitehead, Rev. Cortland.
Service Commemorative of the Right Reverend Cortland Whitehead . . . second Bishop of Pittsburgh, 1882-1922, in Trinity Church . . . [1923].
Paper covers, 16 pp., 9 x 6 in.

Wilkinsburg Academy.
Order of Exercises of the Ciceronian Society, . . . 1856, [and]
Order of Exercises . . . 1868. 2 items.
Card, 6 x 4 in., and single-fold program, 6.5 x 4 in.

William Pitt Memorial Committee, City of Pittsburgh.
Dinner in honor of Sir Charles Wakefield and Delegation from the British Empire, 1922.
Decorative paper covers, 4 pp., 9 x 6 in., with 2.5 x 1.5 in. photoprint of the Chatham bust tipped-in.
Gift of Mrs. W. H. Stevenson.
William Pitt Memorial Committee.
Invitation to unveiling of bust, City-County Building, 1922 Sept. 14.
Card, 3.5 x 6 in.

Women's Industrial Exchange (Pittsburgh, Pa.).
Souvenir Program The Kermess . . . Rocado Orchestra . . .
Carnegie Music Hall December 13th, 14th, 15th and 16th, 1911.
Decorative paper covers, 16 pp., 9 x 6 in.
Gift of Murray Fahnestock Estate.

Young Men's Christian Association, East Liberty Branch.
Thirty-Fourth Anniversary Exercises . . . Nov. 22, 1908
East Liberty Presbyterian Church.
Single-fold colored sheet, 9 x 5.5 in.